
* Denotes items that have supporting documentation provided

AGENDA OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

July 26, 2018 
7:00 P.M. 

CALL TO ORDER  

APPROVE AGENDA 

REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Review/Approve June 28, 2018 Meeting Minutes*  (p. 2)
B. Discuss Amending Non-Conforming Uses (Sections 300.020.34 & 301.050)*  (pp. 3-6)
C. Discuss Amending Zoning Code Variances and Appeals (Section 304.040)*  (pp. 7-12)
D. Discuss 2040 Comp Plan Draft*  (pp. 13-51)
E. Discuss Special Event Permitting Ordinance*  (pp. 52-63)
F. Consider Building Permit Escrow Fees / Ordinance Amendments for Damages to Public 

Property*  (pp. 64-74) 

ADJOURN 

1



TO:  Birchwood Planning Commission 
FROM: Tobin Lay, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: June 28, 2018 Meeting Minutes    

Dear Commissioners, 

The June 28th meeting minutes are not yet available at the time of the preparation of this packet.  If the 
minutes are ready before the meeting, I will distribute accordingly. If not then please table this agenda 
item until your next meeting.  Thanks!  

Regards, 
Tobin Lay 

Birchwood Village 

MEMORANDUM 

2



TO:  Birchwood Planning Commission 
FROM: Tobin Lay, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: 301.050 Non-Conforming Uses     

Dear Commissioners, 

The City Council discussed your recommendation to repeal and replace section 301.050, Non-Conforming 
Uses during their June 12, 2018 Council meeting.  City Attorney Kantrud disagreed with the 
recommendation, explaining that the replacement ordinance would have the same net-effect as the 
existing ordinance.   

Mr. Kantrud offered to work with the Planning Commission, and the City Council accepted, to produce a 
comprehensive rewrite of Birchwood’s non-conforming ordinance in a way to be most effective and to 
allow for dialogue with Birchwood residents.  City Attorney Kantrud is planning to attend this Planning 
Commission meeting to begin this process. 

I have enclosed the existing ordinance and the proposed ordinance recommended by the Commission to 
guide you through this discussion.  

Request/Recommendation 
The City Council requests Commissioners: 

1) Work with City Attorney Kantrud and the public to rewrite section 301.050.
Thanks! 

Regards, 
Tobin Lay 

Birchwood Village 

MEMORANDUM 

3



300.020.  DEFINITIONS.  For the purpose of Chapters 300 through 399 certain terms and words are 
hereby defined as follows: 
… 

34. Non-Conforming Use.   Any building, structure or use of land lawfully in existence as of January 1,
1975, or authorized by variance thereafter, which does not conform with the January 1, 1975, Zoning Code, as 
the same may be amended from time to time. 

301.050.  NON-CONFORMING USES.  A non-conforming use may be continued so long as it remains 
otherwise lawful, subject to the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) below, in order to ensure that the non-
conforming  use will not be intensified and that, over time, the non-conforming use will, where possible, be 
brought into conformity with the Zoning Code.   

1. A non-conforming use shall not be enlarged, modified, changed, extended (either horizontally or
vertically) or structurally altered, unless such changes bring the non-conforming use into conformity with
the Zoning Code.(Exception:  A non-conforming use, lawfully located within 60% of all required setbacks,
may be structurally altered if the alterations do not change the horizontal or vertical dimensions of the
structure and otherwise conform to the Zoning Code.)

2. A non-conforming use shall not be moved to any other part of the parcel of land upon which the same
was constructed unless the move would bring the structure and its use into conformity with the Zoning
Code.

3. If a non-conforming use is damaged or destroyed to an extent of 50% or more of its replacement cost
for any reason (including remodeling or rebuilding), according to the estimate of the building inspector as
approved by the City Council, any reconstruction must conform to the provisions of the Zoning Code.
(Exception:  If the non-conforming use that is to be reconstructed came into being as the result of a
previously granted variance, the Council, after review, may continue the variance if the owner
demonstrates that the conditions under which that variance was granted continue to exist.)

4. Normal maintenance of a structure that represents a non-conforming use is permitted, including
necessary non structural repairs and incidental alterations which do not physically extend or intensify the
non-conforming use.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph (1) above, a structure representing a non-conforming use may be expanded,
provided:

a. That such expansion does not increase the non-conformity in any dimension (vertical or
horizontal), does not create a new non-conforming use, and in itself conforms with the Zoning
Code; and

b. The sum of the setbacks on either side of the structure is not LESS than 20 feet.

6. When any non conforming use of land or of a building or structure shall be abandoned or discontinued
for a period in excess of one year, such land, building, or structure shall thereafter be used only as allowed
by this Code.

7. No provision of this section shall be interpreted as negating the provisions of 302.015 (Undersized
Lots).

4



ORDINANCE 2018-05-02 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING 
NON-CONFORMING USES IN CITY CODE 

The City Council of the City of Birchwood Village hereby ordains that Section 300.020.34 of 
Chapter 300 (Land Use) and Section 301.050 of Chapter 301 (Zoning Code: General Provisions) 
of the Municipal Code of the City of Birchwood Village are hereby repealed and replaced as 
follows: 

SECTION 300: LAND USE 

300.020.34  Non-Conforming Use.  Non-Conforming Pre-Existing Structure or Use: 
Any building or structure which was legally existing on January 1, 1975, or authorized by variance 
thereafter, which would not conform to the applicable conditions if the building or structure were 
to be erected under this Code. Such a structure or use may be continued but may not be extended, 
expanded, intensified, or changed unless to a conforming use.  Non-Conforming Illegal 
Structure, Use, or Lot:  A lot, building, structure, premises, or use illegally established when it 
was initiated, created, or constructed, which did not conform with the applicable conditions or 
provisions of the City Code for the area in which the structure or use is located. 

SECTION 301: ZONING CODE: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

301.050.  NON-CONFORMING USES.     

1. Definition: A non-conforming use or structure. See definition in Section 300.020.

2. Existing Structures or Uses: A pre-existing non-conforming use or structure may be
continued but may not be extended, expanded, intensified or changed, unless to a
conforming use. Exceptions include:

a. An expansion of a pre-existing residential principal or accessory structure in an
R-1 or R-2 zoning district which maintains the same property line setbacks and
structure separations provided there is no further encroachment of any non-
conforming structural dimension or increase in the non-conformity of use of the
land.

b. A pre-existing principal or accessory structure, including expansion thereof, in
which a property line setback dimension has been made substandard by eminent
domain or other formal public agency action. Such a structure shall be
considered a legally conforming structure. All future additions to the structure
or use shall meet the current required setback from the revised property or
easement line.

5



3. Damaged Non-Conforming Structures: Any non-conforming structure damaged to
an extent of not more than fifty percent (50%) of its reproduction cost by fire, flood,
explosion or other casualty may be reconstructed and used as before if such
reconstruction is completed within six (6) months of the casualty. If the damage to the
structure is greater than fifty percent (50%) of the replacement cost of the structure at
the time of loss, as determined by the City Council, the reconstruction shall be in
accordance with this Code.

4. Discontinued Non-Conforming Use: Whenever a non-conforming use shall have
been discontinued for a period of twelve (12) months, it shall not return to the original
or any other use which is non-conforming.

5. Maintenance of Non-Conforming Structures: Normal maintenance of a structure
containing or which is a non-conforming use is permitted, including necessary
nonstructural repairs and incidental alterations which do not  expand the foundation
and/or building size, increase the building occupancy or parking demand, or intensify
the non-conformity of the structure or use.

6. No provision of this section shall be interpreted as negating the provisions of 302.015
(Undersized Lots).

EFFECTIVE DATE: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval and publication as required by law. 

Adopted by the City of Birchwood Village City Council this 10th day of July, 2018 

Attest: 

__________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mary Wingfield     Tobin Lay 
Mayor      City Administrator-Clerk  

6



TO:  Birchwood Planning Commission 
FROM: Tobin Lay, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: 304 Zoning Variances and Appeals 

Dear Commissioners, 

The City Council discussed your recommendation to amend section 304.040, Zoning Variances and 
Appeals during their June 12, 2018 Council meeting.  Members of the City Council agreed with the 
Commission’s changes but felt that other areas of section 304.040 needed amending as well.   

Rather than discussing the specific areas of 304 that need amending, the Council asked Attorney Kantrud 
to work with Commissioners to review and amend other appropriate areas of section 304.  

City Attorney Kantrud is planning to attend this Planning Commission meeting to begin this process.  I 
have enclosed the existing 304 ordinance and the proposed amendments made by the Commission in 
May.  

Request/Recommendation 
The City Council requests Commissioners: 

1) Work with City Attorney Kantrud to review and recommend amendments to the rest of
section 304.

Thanks! 

Regards, 
Tobin Lay 

Birchwood Village 

MEMORANDUM 

7



304. ZONING CODE:  VARIANCES AND APPEALS

304.010.  BOARD OF APPEALS.  The Planning Commission is hereby established as 
the Board of Appeals (Board).  When acting as the Board, the Planning Commission will have 
the power to hear and advise the Council on the following matters: 

1. Requests for variances from the literal provisions of the Zoning Code; and

2. Appeals in which it is alleged that there is an error in any administrative order,
requirement, decision or determination made in the interpretation or enforcement of the
Zoning Code.

304.020.  PETITIONS FOR VARIANCES.  The owner or owners  of land to which the 
variance relates may file a petition for a variance with the Clerk.  The petition shall be made on 
forms provided by the City Clerk. The petition shall be accompanied by plans described below 
and by all required fees.  The City may require the petitioner to submit a certificate by a 
registered professional land surveyor verifying the location of all buildings, setbacks and 
building coverage, and certifying other facts that in the opinion of the City are necessary for 
evaluation of the petition. 

304.030.  APPEALS OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISIONS.  A person who deems 
himself aggrieved by an alleged error in any order, requirement, decision or determination made 
in the interpretation and enforcement of this ordinance, may appeal to the Board  by  filing a 
written appeal with the City Clerk within 30 days after the date of such order, requirement, 
decision or determination.  The appeal shall fully state the order to be appealed and the relevant 
facts of the matter. 

304.040.  VARIANCE REQUIREMENTS AND CRITERIA.  Petitions for Variances 
must include all Required Information and demonstrate that Criteria for each Variance are met.  

1. Required Information.

a. Legal description and address of parcel.  Name, address, and phone number of
applicant (and of the owner if owner is not the applicant).

b. Plot plan drawn to scale.  Elevation contour lines may be required.

c. Plan showing existing and proposed new and changed structures on the lot.
Existing structures on adjacent lots must also be shown.

d. Evidence demonstrating compliance with the Rice Creek Watershed District's
and other Governmental Units' regulations may be required.  (See Section
303.040.)

8



2. Criteria for Granting a Variance.  Variances may only be granted in Minnesota
Statutes, Chapter 462.

Variances to the strict application of the provisions of the Code may be granted, however, 
no variance may be granted that would allow any use that is prohibited within the City.  
Conditions and safeguards may be imposed on the variances so granted.  A variance shall 
not be granted unless the following criteria are met: 

a. Special conditions or circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land,
structure, or building involved.

b. The condition which result in the need for the variance were not created by the
applicant's action or design solution.  The applicant shall have the burden of proof
for showing that no other reasonable design solution exists.

c. The variance is proved necessary in order to secure for the applicant the right
or rights that are enjoyed by other owners in the same area of the district.

d. The granting of a variance will result in no increase in the amount of water
draining from the property.

e. Granting the variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to
adjacent property, or unreasonably diminish or impair established property values
within the surrounding area, or in any other respect impair the public health,
safety, or welfare of the residents of the City.

f. No variance shall be granted simply because there are no objections or because
those who do not object out number those who do.

g. Financial gain or loss by the applicant shall not be considered if reasonable use
for the property exists under terms of the Zoning Code.

"AMENDED BY ORDINANCE 2005-1; APRIL  12, 2005." 

304.050.  HEARING AND RECOMMENDATION BY THE BOARD.  

1. Within 60 days after the City Clerk determines that a variance petition is complete,
and all required fees and information, including plans, drawings and surveys, have been
received, or within 60 days after the filing of an appeal of an administrative decision, the
Board shall conduct a public hearing and after hearing the oral and written views of all
interested persons, the Board shall make its recommendation by a majority vote at the
same meeting or at a specified future meeting thereof.

304.060.  NOTICE OF HEARINGS. 

9



1. Notice of variance hearings shall be mailed not less than ten (10) days before the date
of the hearing to the person who filed the petition for variance, to the Minnesota
Department of Natural Resources, and to each owner of property situated wholly or
partially within 200 feet of the property lines to which the variance relates.

2. A notice of hearing for appeals of administrative decisions shall be published in the
official newspaper of the City not less than ten days before the hearing.  A notice shall
also be mailed to the appellant.

3. No new notice need be given for any hearing which is continued by the Board to a
specified future date.

304.070.  FINAL DECISION.  The Council shall decide all petitions for variance and  
appeals.  The decision shall be made  not later than 30 days after the date of the hearing. . 

304.080.  FORM OF ACTION TAKEN AND RECORD THEREOF.  The Council shall 
maintain a record of its proceedings relative to the petition for variance or appeal  which shall 
include the minutes of its meetings and final order concerning the variance petition or appeal of 
administrative decision.  When applicable, notice of the final order shall be sent to the Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resources within ten (10) days. 

304.090.  REVOCATION.  A violation of any condition set forth or required in granting 
a variance shall be a violation of this Code and automatically terminates the variance.  A 
variance shall become null and void one year after it was granted, unless made use of within the 
year or such longer period prescribed by the Council. 

10



ORDINANCE 2018-04-01 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIANCE PROVISIONS IN CITY CODE 

The City Council of the City of Birchwood Village hereby ordains that Chapter 304 (Variances 
and Appeals) of the Municipal Code of the City of Birchwood Village is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

SECTION 304.040. VARIANCE REQUIREMENTS AND CRITERIA.  Petitions for 
Variances must include all Required Information and demonstrate that Criteria for each Variance 
are met. 

… 

2. Criteria for Granting a Variance.  Variances may only be granted in Minnesota Statutes,
Chapter 462.  Pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. 462.357, subd. 6, as it may be amended from
time to time, the Planning Commission, acting as a Board of Appeals and Adjustments,
may issue variances from the provisions of this zoning code.  A variance is a modification
or variation of the provisions of this zoning code as applied to a specific piece of property.

Variances to the strict application of the provisions of the Code may be granted, however, 
no variance may be granted that would allow any use that is prohibited within the City. 
Conditions and safeguards may be imposed on the variances so granted.  A variance shall 
not be granted unless the following criteria are met: 

SUBD. 1. 
A. Variances shall only be permitted

i. when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the ordinance
and

ii. when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive plan.
B. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there are

practical difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.

SUBD. 2.  "Practical difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means that  

i. Special conditions or circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure,
or building involved.

ii. The condition which result in the need for the variance were not created by the
applicant's action or design solution.  The applicant shall have the burden of proof
for showing that no other reasonable design solution exists.

iii. The variance is proved necessary in order to secure for the applicant the right or
rights that are enjoyed by other owners in the same area of the district.

11



iii. The granting of a variance will result in no increase in the amount of water draining
from the property.

iv. Granting the variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent
property, or unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the
surrounding area, or in any other respect impair the public health, safety, or welfare
of the residents of the City.

v. No variance shall be granted simply because there are no objections or because
those who do not object outnumber those who do.

vi. Financial gain or loss by the applicant shall not be considered if reasonable use for
the property exists under terms of the Zoning Code.

EFFECTIVE DATE: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval and publication as required by law. 

Adopted by the City of Birchwood Village City Council this 12th day of June, 2018 

__________________________________ 
Mary Wingfield  

    Mayor 
Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Tobin Lay 
City Administrator-Clerk 

12



TO:  Birchwood Planning Commission 
FROM: Tobin Lay, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: 2040 Comp Plan Draft      

Dear Commissioners, 

Enclosed is the draft of the 2040 Comp Plan with Bridget Sperl’s and my comments.  I know it is a lot to 
read but please review and make additional edits/suggestions so we can speed up the process in getting 
this approved and filed with the Metropolitan Council.  As many of you have served the City longer than 
Bridget and I, there are several questions in our comments that you may be able to answer.  

Once you have offered your edits, the contractor can make the changes and we can schedule the public 
hearing and review process.   

Request/Recommendation 
Staff requests Commissioners: 

1) Read and edit the enclosed draft of the 2040 Comp Plan.
Thanks! 

Regards, 
Tobin Lay 

Birchwood Village 

MEMORANDUM 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



TO:  Birchwood City Council 
FROM: Tobin Lay, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Special Event Permitting     

Dear Commissioners, 

Staff has been approached this year by local businesses wishing to host a community-wide event in 
Birchwood.  Although the causes for the events seem potentially beneficial to the community, the City 
has no ordinance governing such events.   

With large events comes an increased risk of disturbances to the City and its residents that can become 
nuisances, menace or threaten life, health or property, disrupt traffic or threaten or damage private or 
public property. 

Accordingly, many cities adopt a special event ordinance to administer and regulate these potential 
disturbances/risks and to promote the health, safety and welfare of the residents and visitors of the City. 

The City Council has reviewed the enclosed proposed special event ordinance the past two months and 
has asked that each of the City’s committees and commissions review and comment as it also pertains to 
their jurisdictions.  

Request/Recommendation 
The City Council requests Commissioners: 

1) Review enclosed Ordinance 2018-05-01 Special Events; and
2) Provide comments/suggestions to the City Council on this subject.

Thanks! 

Regards, 
Tobin Lay 

Birchwood Village 

MEMORANDUM 

52



ORDINANCE 2018-05-01 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT SECTION 400 INTO CITY CODE TO ADMINISTER 
AND REGULATE SPECIAL EVENTS 

The City Council of the City of Birchwood Village hereby witnesseth that an Oordinance to 
enact a new section of the Birchwood Village Code of Ordinances to administer and regulate 
special events, and to provide for the issuance and regulation of special event permits to 
promote the health, safety and welfare of all residents and visitors of the city:  

THE COUNCIL OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE ORDAINS: 

In General, Chapter 400, City of Birchwood Village, County of Washington, Minnesota, 
“Special Events” is herewith adopted into Ccity Ccode. Any and all previously adopted sections 
or ordinances which may appear contrary or in conflict with this ordinance are hereby replaced 
or modified by this code. 

SECTION 400:  SPECIAL EVENTS 

400.010 FINDINGS, PURPOSE AND INTENT. 

It is the purpose of the Ccity Ccouncil to regulate the time, place and manner of 
special events when the event’s impact upon the health, sanitary, fire, police, 
transportation and utility services exceeds those regularly provided to that 
property. This Oordinance is enacted in order to promote the health, safety and 
welfare of all residents and visitors of the city by ensuring that special events do 
not create disturbances, become nuisances, menace or threaten life, health or 
property, disrupt traffic or threaten or damage private or public property. It is not 
the intent of the Ccity Ccouncil by enacting this Oordinance to regulate in any 
manner the content of speech or infringe upon the right to assemble, except for 
regulating the time, place and manner of speech and assembly and this 
Oordinance should not be interpreted or construed otherwise. 

400.020 DEFINITIONS. 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Chapter, will have the 
following meanings: 

1. AIR SUPPORTED AMUSEMENT STRUCTURE.   Any device that
incorporates a structural and mechanical system and employs a high-strength
fabric or film that achieves its strength, shape, and stability by pre-tensioning
with internal air pressure (inflation).  It carries or conveys or permits persons
to walk, run or jump along, around or over a fixed or restricted route or
course or within a defined area including the entrances and exits thereto, for
the purpose of enjoyment.

53



2. EVENT COORDINATOR.  That person or persons appointed, directed and 
empowered by the City of Birchwood Village to administrate the 
management of special events and those necessary responsibilities 
empowered by this Chapter. 

 
2.3. SPECIAL EVENT.  Any concert, parade, fair, show, festival, carnival, 

rally, party, filming of a movie, video or television show, motorcade, run, 
street dance, race, walk or athletic event or other attended entertainment or 
celebration that is to be held in whole or in part upon publicly owned 
property or public right-of-way, or, if held wholly or partly upon private 
property, will require the use of Special Services. 

 
3.4. SPECIAL SERVICES.  The exclusive allocation of city resources, 

including, but not limited to, city personnel, equipment, rights-of-way, 
property or facilities for use in conjunction with a specific event or activity, 
as requested by the host or sponsor of the event, or as requested by or on 
behalf of any person attending the event, or deemed necessary by city staff in 
order to maintain public safety. Special Services shall include, but not be 
limited to, any of the following: street closures; requiring police officers to 
stop or reroute traffic; special police protection, e.g. to offer protection to a 
V.I.P. or persons of stature; stationing emergency vehicles at or in the 
immediate vicinity of the event due to heightened risk of physical injury due 
to the event; exclusive use of city streets or property as a staging area or for 
event parking; additional street cleaning and garbage removal services; 
special signage, such as temporary no parking signs; the use of any city 
building, equipment or other property for any purpose other than the normal 
operations of the facilities; or the city otherwise providing exclusive services. 

 
400.030 PERMIT.  

A. Permit required. Any person or organization desiring to hold a Special 
Event in the city and/or to use air supported amusement structures in/on 
public property, facilities, or right-of-way must first obtain a Special Event 
Ppermit from the city in addition to any other permits required for the event 
by state law or city ordinance. 
 

B. Exceptions. A permit is not required for: 
 

1. Special events sponsored and managed by the City or the Community 
Club; 
  

2. Neighborhood block parties held in connection with National Night Out 
or where no streets are proposed to be closed for more than the duration 
of that event; 

  
1.3. Wedding ceremonies, funeral ceremonies and funeral processions 

not requiring Special Services; 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.5", Right:  0", Add space
between paragraphs of the same style,  No bullets or
numbering, Tab stops: Not at  1.25"

54



2.4. Any event attended by fewer than 200 50 persons at one time 
which does not require any Special Services and does not involve the sale 
of alcohol; 

3.5. Any event that is otherwise regulated by the city through the use 
of another regulatory manner, such as a conditional use permit; 

4.6. Any event that is otherwise approved by the city through a facility 
rental or use agreement (e.g., a Community CenterVillage Hall rental) or 
contract which does not require any additional Special Services and does 
not involve the sale of alcohol; and 

5.7. The use of traditional public forums as alternative channels of 
communication by the public, provided that such use is for the free 
exercise of constitutionally protected activities and does not disrupt or 
interfere with traffic on public streets or the use of public places by other 
members of the public. 

C. Air Supported Amusement Structure. Applicants wishing to use an Air
Supported Amusement Structure in/on public property, facilities, or right-of-way
must provide the following information in addition to the Special Event Permit
application:

1. The name, address, and telephone number of the owner or operator of the air
supported amusement structure. 

2. Description of each air supported amusement structure.

1.3. Plan to secure the Air Supported Amusement Structure and ensure the 
safety of the users. 

2.4. Copy of insurance policy for the air supported amusement structure, 
naming the city as an additional insured if placed on public property. 

400.040 PERMIT APPLICATION. 
A. Form.  Application for a permit to hold a Special Event must be made in

writing and must contain a statement made upon oath or affirmation that the
statements contained therein are true and correct to the best knowledge of the
applicant and must be signed and sworn to or affirmed by the individual
making application. The application must contain and disclose the following:
A.
1. Applicant name, address, phone number, including whether the applicant

is an individual, organization, or other entity;

2. Date(s) of proposed Special Event;

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25",  No bullets or numbering

55



3. Address(es) of proposed Special Event;

4. Name and consent of property owner, if different from applicant;

5. Type and description of the Special Event and a list of all activities to
take place at the Special Event;

6. Estimated number of persons to attend;

7. Duration of Special Event, including beginning and ending times;

8. Any public health plans, including supplying water to the site, solid waste
collection and provision of toilet facilities, if applicable;

9. Any fire prevention and emergency medical services plans, if applicable;

10. Any security plans, if applicable;

10.11. Any permits obtained from other agencies as required by them for 
the event; 

11.12. The admission fee, donation or other consideration to be charged 
or requested for admission, if applicable; 

12.13. Whether food or alcohol will be served or sold at the event; 

13.14. A detailed description of all public rights-of-way and private 
streets for which the applicant requests the city to restrict or alter normal 
parking, vehicular traffic or pedestrian traffic patterns, the nature of such 
restrictions or alterations, and the basis; 

14.15. A description of any services, city personnel, city equipment and 
city property which the applicant requests the City to provide, including 
the applicant’s estimate of the number and type needed, and the basis on 
which the estimate is made. However, the City retains sole discretion to 
determine the number and type of services required for the event; 

15.16. Whether any sound amplification or public address system will be 
used or if there will be any playing of any music or musical instruments; 

16.17. A statement signed by the applicant either agreeing to pay all fees 
and meet all other requirements of this Chapter, or representing to the city 
that the applicant is duly authorized to make such agreement on behalf of 
the person or organization holding or sponsoring the Special event; 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

56



17.18. Applicant signature and property owner’s signature, if different 
from applicant; and 

18.19. Any other information requested by the city, acting through its 
city administrator or law enforcement officialchief of police, deemseded 
reasonably necessary in order to determine the nature of the Special Event 
and the extent of any Special Services required. 

B. Time for filing. A Special Event permit application must be filed with the
city’s Event Coordinator at least 30 60 days but not more than 365 days in
advance of the date in which the Special Event is to occur.

C. Permit fee. An applicant for a Special Event permit must pay a
nonrefundable permit fee in an amount set by resolution.

400.050 PERMIT REVIEW. 
A. Receipt of Application. Upon receipt of a Special Event permit application,

the city’s Event Coordinator shall be responsible for promptly processing the
application, including conferring with department headscity staff, agents and
the applicant as necessary to implement the provisions of this Chapter, and,
when required by this Chapter, forwarding the processed application to the
city council with a recommendation to approve, approve with conditions or
modifications, or deny the special event permit application.

B. Special Services. The city administratorEvent Coordinator shall promptly
distribute copies of the application for review by the headcity staff or agents
of each department in cases where Special Services are requested or will be
necessary. Each such department headstaff or agent shall review the
application and evaluate the Special Services and shall report to the city
administratorEvent Coordinator, with a recommendation that application and
the requested Special Services be approved, approved with conditions or
modifications, or denied. Each department headstaff or agent shall also
provide the city administratorEvent Coordinator with a cost estimate for the
Special Services associated withwithin his or her departmentduty/jurisdiction.

C. Review. When a Special Event will not require any Special Services or does
not require a significant amount of Special Services, the city
administratorEvent Coordinator may review and approve the permit
application administratively. In cases where a Special Event requires a
significant amount of Special Services, the application will be presented to
the city council for review. The city council may take any public
testimonyhold a public hearing on the permit application to inform its
decision. It may also refer the permit application to the city commissions for
its review and recommendation.

D. Permit Denial.  The cityEvent Coordinator may deny an application for a
Special Event permit if it is determineds from a consideration of the

Commented [TL1]: What amount? 

57



application or other pertinent information, in the opinion of the Coordinator, 
that: 

1. The information contained in the application or supplemental information
requested from the applicant is false or nonexistent in any material detail;

2. The applicant fails to supplement the application after having been
notified by the city of additional information or documents needed;

3. The applicant fails to agree to abide or comply with all of the conditions
and terms of the Special Event permit, including payment of all costs and
expenses;

4. The Special Event would substantially or unnecessarily interfere with
traffic in the city, would interfere with access to the fire station or fire
hydrants, or would interfere with access to businesses or residences in the
immediate vicinity of the event and there are not sufficient city resources
available at the time of the event to mitigate the disruption;

5. The Special Event is of the size or nature that requires the diversion of so
many law enforcement officers to properly police the event, site and
contiguous areas that allowing the Special Event would unreasonably
deny law enforcement protection to the remainder of the city and its
residents;

6. The proposed date and time of the Special Event conflicts with a
previously scheduled event and there are not available at the time of the
proposed Special Event sufficient city resources to provide services for
both events without substantially or unnecessarily interfering with police,
fire, water, public works or other services to the city as a whole;

7. The location of the Special Event will substantially interfere with any
construction or maintenance work scheduled to take place upon or along
public property or right-of-way;

8. The Special Event would likely endanger the public safety or health;

9. The Special Event would substantially or unnecessarily interfere with
police, fire, water, public works or other services to the city as a whole
and there are not available at the time of the proposed event sufficient city
resources to mitigate the disruption;

10. The applicant fails to comply with the liability insurance requirements or
the applicant’s insurance lapses or is canceled;

11. The Special Event would likely create or constitute a public nuisance;

12. The Special Event would be likely to cause significant damage to public
property or facilities;

58



13. The Special Event would engage in or encourage participants to engage in
illegal acts; or

14. The applicant, responsible party or the person on whose behalf the
application is submitted has on prior occasions made material
misrepresentations regarding the nature and extent of Special Services
required for a Special Event in the city, or has violated the terms of a prior
Special Event permit.

14.15. The city council may deny an application for a Special Event 
Permit or an appeal from a denial by the event coordinator of such an 
application. 

400.060 PERMIT ISSUANCE. 

A. Permitted areas. Because of the predominantly residential character of the
city and the relatively small size of the commercially zoned areas resulting in
the potential for conflicting uses, Special Events will be permitted within the
city only after a finding by the Event Coordinator or city that the character of
the proposed Special Event is compatible with the character of the
surrounding neighborhood considering the possible creation of problems
including noise, lighting, traffic, sanitation, congestion and other factors
affecting the public health, safety and welfare of such areas in addition to
compliance with all ordinances of this city and applicable statutes and
regulations.

B. Permit Conditions.  The city council may condition the issuance of a Special
Event permit by imposing reasonable conditions concerning the time, place
and manner of the Special Event, and such conditions as are necessary to
protect the safety of persons and property, and the control of traffic; provided
that such conditions shall not unreasonably restrict the right of free speech.
The city may inspect the property upon which the Special Event is to be held
prior to the event in order to make certain there is compliance with all permit
conditions. Such conditions may include, but are not limited to:

1. Alteration of the date(s), time(s), route(s) or location of the Special Event
proposed;

2. Elimination of an activity at the Special Event which cannot be mitigated
to a point as to ensure public safety and welfare, or which causes liability
to the city;

3. Requirements concerning the area of assembly and disbanding of a parade
or other events occurring along a route;

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.5", Right:  0", Add space
between paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  single, 
No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at  0.58"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

59



4. Requirements concerning the accommodation of pedestrian or vehicular
traffic, including restricting the event to only a portion of the street or
right-of-way;

5. Requirements for the use of Special Services;

6. Requirements for the use of traffic cones or barricades;

7. Requirements for the provision of first aid or sanitary facilities;

8. Requirements for the use of Special Event monitors and the providing
notice of the Special Event’s permit’s conditions to the event’s
participants;

9. Requirements on the number and type of vehicles, animals or structures to
be allowed at the Special Event and the inspection and approval of floats,
structures and decorated vehicles by the city for safety purposes;

10. Compliance with animal protection ordinances and laws;

11. Requirements for the use of garbage containers and the cleanup and
restoration of any public property;

12. Restrictions on the use of amplified sound, public address systems and the
playing of music and musical instruments and compliance with noise
ordinances, regulations and laws;

13. Limitations on the maximum attendance;

14. Requirements on the number of security personnel;

15. Requiring notice of the Special Event to be provided to surrounding
property owners; and

16. Restrictions on the sale or consumption of food or alcohol.

C. Permit Issuance.  When a Special Event will not require any Special
Services or does not require a significant amount of Special Services, the city
administrator may issue the Special Event permit administratively. In cases 
where a Special Event requires a significant amount of Special Services, the 
aIf the above-conditions are agreed to and the information regarding the 
Event is complete the Event Coordinator mayshall issue the Special Event 
Permit or forward to the city council for approval.pplication will be presented 
to the city council for approval. 

400.070 SPECIAL SERVICES FEES. 

60



A. Special Services Fee Deposit.  If any Special Services are to be used during
the Special Event, the applicant may be required to pay a non-refundable
Special Services fee deposit at least ten business days before the Special
Event. The Special Services fee deposit shall be determined by the Event
Coordinator or city councilcity administrator. It shall be based upon an
estimate of Special Services that are necessary as determined by the
Coordinatorcity’s department heads.

B. User Fee. Upon completion of the Special Event, the city shallmay prepare a
detailed account of all Special Services provided for the Special Event, if any,
and in such cases, will determineset the final user fee using the rates, fees and
charges in the amounts set by resolution. The city will then provide the
authorized and responsible person identified in the Special Event permit
application with a copy of the detailed account of the Special Services and an
invoice for the user fee, less the fee deposit. The balance of the user fee will
then become due and payable immediately upon its receipt or the balance of
the deposit refunded.

C. Special Services Rates.  The rates charged shall be an amount set by 
resolution.

400.080 INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT. 
If the Special Event requires Special Services, prior to the issuance of a Special 
Event permit, the permit applicant and authorizing officer of the sponsoring 
organization, if any, must sign an agreement to indemnify, defend and hold the 
city, its officials, employees, and agents harmless from any claim that arises in 
whole or in part out of the Special Event, except any claims arising solely out of 
the negligent acts or omissions of the city, its officials, employees and agents. 

400.090 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 
A. Liability Insurance Required.  The Applicant, sponsor and those hired

and/or obtained by the Applicant to provide a service at the Special Event
must possess or obtain liability insurance to protect against loss from liability
imposed by law for damages on account of bodily injury or property damage
arising from the Special Event. A certificate of insurance must be filed with
the city prior to issuance of the Special Event permit. The certificate of
insurance must name the city, its officials, employees and agents as additional
insureds. Insurance coverage must be maintained for the duration of the
Special Event.  Any company hired or working on behalf of the applicant or
sponsor must also present the city with a certificate of insurance naming the
city, its officials, its employees and agents as additional insureds.

B. Minimum Limits. Insurance coverage must be a commercial general
liability policy. The minimum limits must be at least $1,000,000. If alcoholic
beverages are to be sold or distributed at the Special Event, the policy must

Commented [TL2]: What amount? 

61



also include an endorsement for liquor liability. The city may require 
additional endorsements or increased minimum limits depending upon the 
type of Special Event and the proposed activities at the determination of the 
Event Coordinator. 

C. Waiver or Reduction of Required Limits.  The city may waive or reduce
insurance requirements of this section under the following circumstances:

1. The applicant or officer of the sponsoring organization signs a verified
statement that it believes that the Special Event’s purpose is First
Amendment expression and that the cost of obtaining the insurance is so
financially burdensome that it would constitute an unreasonable burden
on the right of First Amendment expression;

2. The applicant or officer of the sponsoring organization signs a verified
statement that the insurance coverage required by this section is
impossible to obtain; or

3. The city determines that the insurance requirements are in excess of the
reasonable risk presented by the proposed Special Event.

400.100 OVERNIGHT CAMPING. 
No person holding a permit for a Special Event shall allow and no participant in a 
Special Event shall camp overnight at the location of a Special Event. A , except 
for a reasonable number of persons required to maintain security may remain on-
site to protect property used in conjunction with the Event. 

400.110 COMPLIANCE WITH PERMIT. 
A. Unlawful to Sponsor a Special Event without a Permit. It is unlawful for

any person or entity to sponsor or conduct a Special Event requiring a permit
pursuant to this Chapter unless a valid Special Event permit has been issued
for the event.

B. Unlawful to exceed the Scope of the Permit. The Special Event permit
authorizes the Special Event permittee or sponsor to conduct only such a
Special Event as is described in the permit, and in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the permit. It is unlawful for the permittee or sponsor to
willfully violate the terms and conditions of the permit.

400.120 REVOCATION. 
A Special Event permit may be revoked by the Event CoordinatorCity 
Administrator or senior law enforcement official for CityChief of Police at any 
time for failure to comply with the provisions of this Chapter and conditions of 
the Ppermit. 

400.130 ENFORCEMENT. 

62



A. Injunction. The provisions of this Chapter may be enforced by injunction in
any court of competent jurisdiction.

B. Public nuisance.  The holding of a Special Event in violation of any
provision or condition contained in this Chapter will be deemed a public
nuisance and may be abated as such. Issuance of a Special Event permit by
the city does not preclude the right of an individual to pursue a private
nuisance action against the applicant.

C. Misdemeanor.  Violation of any provision of this Chapter is a misdemeanor.
Violators shall be subject to a fine or imprisonment as specified by state
statute, currently punishable by up to 90 days in the County Jail and/or a fine
of no greater than $1000.00. Each day in which a violation continues to occur
shall constitute a separate offense. Violation of any provision of this Chapter
shall also be grounds for revocation of the Special Event Permit.

400.140 MODIFICATIONS. 
The city council may modify or waive any of the requirements of this Chapter 
after a finding that the waiver or modification of the requirements, including the 
required fee, will not endanger the public health, safety and welfare of the 
community and that enforcement of the requirements would impose a unique 
hardship upon the applicant. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance becomes effective on the date of its publication, or upon 
the publication of a summary of the ordinance as provided by M.S. § 412.191, subd. 4, as it may 
be amended from time to time, which meets the requirements of M.S. § 331A.01, subd. 10, as it 
may be amended from time to time.  

Adopted by the City of Birchwood Village City Council this 152th day of JuneAugust, 2018 

__________________________________ 
Mary Wingfield 

    Mayor 
Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Tobin Lay 
City Administrator-Clerk 

63



TO:  Birchwood Planning Commission 
FROM: Tobin Lay, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Building Permit Escrow Fees     

Dear Commissioners, 

The City Council continues to wait for a recommendation regarding how to repair damages to the City’s 
ROW by residents and contractors.  

Mayor Wingfield plans to bring up this topic to the City Council again at their August 15, 2018 meeting.  I 
have enclosed the following materials she has plans to introduce to the Council in August: 

• Proposed Birchwood Escrow Fee Schedule
• City of Grant Escrow Fee Schedule
• City of Afton Escrow Fee Schedule

Request/Recommendation 
Staff requests Commissioners: 

1) Review and discuss the proposed remedies; and
2) Make recommendations to the City Council.

Thanks! 

Regards, 
Tobin Lay 

Birchwood Village 

MEMORANDUM 

64



 
CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE FEE SCHEDULE 

ADDITIONAL CHARGES FOR ESCROW AMOUNTS 
  
 
An escrow amount will be required at the time application fees and the application is 
received by the City's Consultant.  
 
Subdivision    $7000  
Lot Split    N/A  
Variance    $3000  
Conditional Use Permit  $3000  
   (Amended and new)  
Conditional Use Permit  N/A  
   (Renewal)  
All Other Land uses  $1000  
Grading Permit Fees  
   (under 100 cu. Yards)  $200  
   (100+ cu. Yards)   $3000  
 
 
*Unused escrow amounts will be returned to the applicant 
*For additional information, see also the Escrow Account Policies Form.  

65



2018 Fee Schedule Page 1 of 2 Rev. Date: January 2018 

Ordinance No. 2018-57 

2018 FEE SCHEDULE 

FEES, CHARGES, AND ESCROW 

CITY OF GRANT 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 577 
Willernie, Minnesota 55090 

Town Hall: 111 Wildwood Road 
Phone: (651) 426-3383   Fax: (651) 429-1998 

E-mail: clerk@cityofgrant.us

Make checks payable to City of Grant. 

Under State and local planning laws, any property owner may petition for rezoning and/or platting. The City, upon receipt of 
such a petition, will process the application in accordance with the procedures and provisions of the ordinances. 

The City charges the petitioner a filing fee for this processing, as well as requiring that he/she pay all costs the City may 
incur in processing and “hearing” the application. An escrow amount will be required at the time application fees and the 
application is received by the City’s Consultant. 

For Each Application Application Fees Escrow* TOTAL 

Minor Subdivision $400 $4,000 $400 plus $4,000 

escrow 

Major Subdivision $1,000 + $25 per lot $7,000 $1,000 + $25 per lot 

plus $7,000 escrow 

Variance $400 $3,000 $400 plus $3,000 

escrow 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
(Amended and New) 

$400 $3,000 $400 + $3,000 

escrow 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
Annual Review Fee 

N/A N/A 

All other Land Use Issues $100 $1,000 $100 + $1,000 

escrow 

Certificate of Compliance (COC) $50 $900** $50 + $950 

 escrow** 

COC Amendment $50 $200 
$50 + $200 

escrow 
Grading Permit Fees $150 for 50 - 100 

Cubic yards 
$300 <100 Cubic 

Yards 

 No Escrow 

$1500-      
$3000 Escrow  

Required 

Dependent upon 

number of yards 

* Unused escrow amounts will be returned to the applicant.
* COC Escrow required only for issues that require City Planner analysis or review.  Examples include:
 Accessory buildings in front of the primary structure
 Projects involving issues related to animal units per grazable acres
 Buildings meeting the state definition of an “agricultural building”

 Other complex zoning issues requiring Planner analysis or review
* For additional information, see also the Escrow Account Policies Form.
 Permits applied for after work has begun will be two times the standard fee.

Below are listed other permits required for various activities in the City of Grant. 

Other Permits Permit Fees 

Sign Permit $50 

Charitable Gambling Operations $100 

66



2017 Fee Schedule Page 2 of 2 Rev. Date: January 2017 

Permit 

Demolition Permit $100 

Mann Lake Parking Permit $10/resident OR $50/non-
resident 

Burn Permits $10 

Below are listed other fees associated with City services. 

False Alarm Fees Commercial Residential 

False Fire Alarms (Alarms 1-2) No Charge No Charge 
False Fire Alarms (Alarms 3+) Actual cost of response 

Minimum charge: $50 
Maximum charge: $400 

Varies with actual 
cost 

Other False Alarms Commercial Residential 

Alarms 1-2 No Charge No Charge 
Alarms 3-6 $60 each $50 each 
Alarms 7+ $100 each $75 each 

Permit/Escrow Fees Application Fee Escrow Fee 

Qwest  $200 $3,000 
Comcast $200 $3,000 
Koch Pipeline $200 $3,000 
Xcel Energy (gas/electric) $0 $0 

Liquor License Fees Fee 

On-Sale Liquor  $2,000 
On-Sale Sunday  $200 
On-Sale Beer 3.2 $200 
Off-Sale Liquor $200 

Miscellaneous Fees Fee 

Subdivision Ordinance-Copy $20 
Zoning Ordinance-Copy  $25 
Comprehensive Plan-Copy  $10 
Special Assessment  $20 
Dishonored Check  $40 
Copies  .25 per page Over 100 Time Based 
Notary Fee – Non-resident $5.00 
Solicitor’s License Fee  $75 
Meeting DVD-Copy 
Wetland Review Specialist     

$10 
$100/$500 Escrow 

MLCCS Review Fee $75 

Driveway Permit $50 

Preapplication Meeting/Planner  $300 

67



CD3:1 

Chapter 3 

CITY FEE SCHEDULE 

ARTICLE I.  FEES, CHARGES AND EXPENSES ............................................................................................... 3 

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY ............................................................................................................................... 3 

Section 3-1.  Schedule for Fees, Charges and Expenses. ................................................................................. 3 

Section 3-2.  Establishment of Fees. ................................................................................................................ 3 

Section 3-3.  Fees Posted & Available. ............................................................................................................ 3 

Section 3-4 - 3-35.  Reserved. .......................................................................................................................... 3 

DIVISION 2.  CITY FEE SCHEDULE............................................................................................................... 3 

Section 3-36.  Administratively Issued Permits. .............................................................................................. 3 

Section 3-37.  Building Permits. ...................................................................................................................... 3 

Section 3-38.  Conditional Use Permit............................................................................................................. 4 

Section 3-39.  Licenses, Fees & Other Permits. ............................................................................................... 4 

Section 3-40.  Miscellaneous Fees. .................................................................................................................. 5 

Section 3-41.  Park Fees. ................................................................................................................................. 5 

Section 3-42.  Zoning Fees. ............................................................................................................................. 5 

Section 3-43.  After-The-Fact Fees. ................................................................................................................. 6 

Section 3-44.  Attachment A. Building Permit Fee Table. .............................................................................. 6 

Section 3-45 – 3-65.  Reserved. ....................................................................................................................... 7 

68



AFTON CODE 

CD3:2 
69



CITY FEE SCHEDULE 
 

CD3:3 

 

ARTICLE I.  FEES, CHARGES AND EXPENSES 

 
DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 

 
Section 3-1.  Schedule for Fees, Charges and Expenses. 

 
  Fees and charges, as well as expenses incurred by the City for engineering, planning, attorney and other 
services related to the processing of applications shall be established by this Ordinance and collected by the City 
Administrator for deposit in the City’s accounts.  Fees shall be established as follows. The Council may establish 
charges for public hearings, special meetings, or other such Council or Planning Commission actions as are 
necessary to process applications. 
(Ord. 07-2010, 7/20/10) 
 
Section 3-2.  Establishment of Fees. 
 

Fees shall be established as follows.  The Council may establish charges for Staff time, use of consultants, 
public hearings, special meetings, or other such Council or Planning Commission actions as are necessary to 
process applications. The Fee Schedule shall be established and adopted from time to time by the City Council 
by Resolution. 

 
Section 3-3.  Fees Posted & Available.  
 

A copy of any Resolution adopted by the City Council establishing the specific fees authorized herein shall 
be posted or otherwise available at City Hall during normal business hours. 
(Ord. 03-2010, 3/16/10) 
 
Section 3-4 - 3-35.  Reserved. 
 

DIVISION 2.  CITY FEE SCHEDULE 
 
Section 3-36.  Administratively Issued Permits. 
 

Fees are in addition to any building permit fees.  
 FEE  ESCROW 

Administrative Permit $150 $600 
Animal Kennel $60   $200 
Design Review $50 
Fence * $60 $1,000 
Grading Permit ** $100 $1,000 
Moving/Relocating Structure  $75  
Sign Permit $150                               $200                    
Sign Permit –Temporary / Renewal $25 
Tennis Court $60 $1,000                             
Vegetative Cutting / debris removal               $200 

 
Section 3-37.  Building Permits. 
  

Building permits, other than those specified below, are based on project valuation. (Please refer to 
Attachment A:  Building Permit Fee Table – attached.) 

  FEE ESCROW 
Demolition Permit $110 $250 
Exterior Door Replacement $110 
Mechanical 
 A/C, Water or Garage Heater,  

 Gas Lines, Soft Water System $55 
 Furnace, HVAC, Fireplace $110 
Plumbing 

70



AFTON CODE 

CD3:4 

Commercial:  1% of the project valuation; $75 minimum. 
Residential: 

One Bathroom incl. rough-ins $60 
 Each Additional Bathroom $10 

Roof replacement $110 
Swimming Pool - Building Permit $110 

Admin Permit - Fence Fee and Escrow required * 
 Grading Permit - Often required ** 
Siding Replacement $110 
Utility Permit  $250 
Window Replacement $110 
Other Permit Not Specified $110 

Section 3-38.  Conditional Use Permit. 

As a land use issue, Conditional Use Permit applications must be heard by the Planning Commission and 
will  be either approved or denied by City Council. 

FEE ESCROW 
Conditional Use Permit  $250 $600 
Conditional Use Permit –Tower Structures $250 $8,000 
Conditional Use Permit - Amended $250 $350 
Conditional Use Permit - Renewal $250  $350 
Conditional Use Permit/Renewal/Amendment 

To increase Impervious Surface over 
35% in Industrial District $250 $1,000 

Section 3-39.  Licenses, Fees & Other Permits. 
FEE ESCROW 

A. Annual Licenses:

Adult Entertainment License  $10,000 per year 
Adult Entertainment Investigation $1,500 

Aircraft (Unpowered/Powered Vehicles) $100  

Charitable Gambling 10% of net gambling profits payable monthly

Commercial Fertilizer License (Lawns) 1 $200 $1,0001 

Commercial Fertilizer Permit $100 

Golf Cart 
Individual $25 
Business 

Includes first two carts $50 
Additional carts/each $10 

Pawnbroker / secondhand dealer license $100  per year 
Pawnbroker Investigation: Actual cost  $3,000 maximum 

Peddler / Solicitor License     $50 

Liquor Licenses 
On Sale $1,400 
Off Sale $150 
Sunday $200 
2 A.M. Closing $100 
On Sale Wine Only  $750 

1 Also requires $1,000 Corporate Bond 

71



CITY FEE SCHEDULE 
 

CD3:5 

 Other - Temporary  As determined by City Council 
 
 Solid Waste Hauler $100  
 

B. Bi-Annual Licenses: 
 

  Dog or Cat (Altered or with chip implant) $5 
  Dog or Cat (Non-Altered)  $10 
 
Section 3-40.  Miscellaneous Fees. 
  FEE   
 Animal - Impounded / Claimed  

Charges due from Owner:  
 Daily boarding fee $20 
 Veterinary services Actual Cost 
 Administration fee  $8 
 Impound Fee $95 

 Comprehensive Plan $50 
City Consultant Fees: As billed to the city for phone calls, site visits, plan reviews, etc. 

 Copies - per 8-1/2 x 11 page $0.25 
 Per 11x17  page  $1 
 CD/DVD copy of meeting    $10 
 Dockage Charge, City Dock 
 Non-resident  (per 4 hour increment) $5  
 City Resident (per 4 hour increment) $3   
 Overnight $20 

Election Filing Fee $2 
 Ordinance Book $100 
 Returned Check $35 
 Zoning Code $50 
 
Section 3-41.  Park Fees. 
 FEE   
 Fourth of July:   
  Booth Permit $50 
  Street Vendor $15 
 Park Reservation Fees: Resident Non-Resident  
 Fee Deposit  Fee Deposit 
  Whole Park* $100   $200 $200  $200 
  Picnic Shelter $25     $100 $100 $100 
  Gazebo $25 $100 $100 $100 
 *Does not include playground / play structure 
 
Section 3-42.  Zoning Fees. 
 FEE ESCROW 2 
 Appeals $100 $250 
 Comprehensive Plan Amendment  $350 $1,500 
 Ordinance Amendment $350 $1,500 
 Driveway Permit (Zoning/Engineering) 3 $250 $1,500 
 Farm Site Plan $50 
 Grading Permit $100 $1,000 
 Landscape Performance Bond- Industrial2 125% of the estimated cost to furnish and plant

 required vegetation, as approved by the City. 
 Subdivision 
  Simple Subdivision $250 $600 
  Minor Subdivision $250 $1,500 

                                                           
2 Additional escrow may be required for more complex applications 
3 Deposit held until Final Certificate of Occupancy issued. 

72



AFTON CODE 

CD3:6 

Major Subdivision:  Sketch Plan & Preliminary Plat (required for more than 3 lots and PAUDs) 
0 - 5 Acres $500 + $100 per lot $2,500 

> 5 - 40 Acres $1,000 + $100 per lot $5,000 
> 40 - 80 Acres $2,000 + $100 per lot $7,500 

> 80 Acres $5,000 + $100 per lot $10,000
Final Plat $250 $1000 

Park Dedication Fee: 
Residential 7.5% of the predevelopment value of the property being subdivided, subject to a 

minimum fee of $5,000 per dwelling unit and a maximum fee of $10,000 per 
dwelling unit, or that portion of land which could be purchased with the amount of 
park dedication fee payment owed by the subject subdivision on a per dwelling unit 
basis.   

Commercial $1,5004 
Industrial $1,5005 
Previously Created Lots $5002 

Rezoning 
Comprehensive Plan $350 $1,500 
Ag Preserve Certification $50 
From Ag Preserve to Agricultural $150 

Variance $250     $600 
 Variance Extension $250 $350 
Street Permit:  

Street Opening $150 + 5 Waived if Franchise 
Street Vacation $250    $500 

Section 3-43.  After-The-Fact Fees. 

 In any case in which a property owner/contractor/developer/applicant has moved forward with a project 
involving grading, filling, construction, etc., prior to obtaining the required permit, CUP, variance, or other 
regulatory approval, the fees associated with the project will be tripled.  
(Ord. 06-2010, 6/15/10) 

Section 3-44.  Attachment A. Building Permit Fee Table. 

BUILDING PERMIT FEE TABLE 2010 Adopted 2/19/13 

Value MN 
Surcharge 

Plan Review/ 
Inspections 

City Fee Permit Total 

$1,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $30.00 $110.00 

$2,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $30.00 $110.00 

$3,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $30.00 $110.00 

$4,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $30.00 $110.00 

$5,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $30.00 $110.00 

$6,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $30.00 $110.00 

$7,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $40.50 $120.50 

$8,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $57.00 $137.00 

$9,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $73.50 $153.50 

$10,000.00 $5.00 $75.00 $90.00 $170.00 

$11,000.00 $5.50 $75.00 $106.50 $187.00 

$12,000.00 $6.00 $75.00 $123.00 $204.00 

$13,000.00 $6.50 $78.00 $136.50 $221.00 

$14,000.00 $7.00 $84.00 $147.00 $238.00 

$15,000.00 $7.50 $90.00 $157.50 $255.00 

4 Per acre for all land which comprises the Subdivision 
5 $150.00 plus $40.00 per 100 feet 

73



CITY FEE SCHEDULE 

CD3:7 

$16,000.00 $8.00 $96.00 $168.00 $272.00 

$17,000.00 $8.50 $102.00 $178.50 $289.00 

$18,000.00 $9.00 $108.00 $189.00 $306.00 

$19,000.00 $9.50 $114.00 $199.50 $323.00 

$20,000.00 $10.00 $120.00 $210.00 $340.00 

$25,000.00 $12.50 $150.00 $262.50 $425.00 

$50,000.00 $25.00 $300.00 $525.00 $850.00 

$100,000.00 $50.00 $600.00 $1,050.00 $1,700.00 

$150,000.00 $75.00 $900.00 $1,575.00 $2,550.00 

$200,000.00 $100.00 $1,200.00 $2,100.00 $3,400.00 

$250,000.00 $125.00 $1,500.00 $2,625.00 $4,250.00 

$300,000.00 $150.00 $1,800.00 $3,150.00 $5,100.00 

$350,000.00 $175.00 $2,100.00 $3,675.00 $5,950.00 

$400,000.00 $200.00 $2,400.00 $4,200.00 $6,800.00 

$401,000.00 $200.50 $2,406.00 $4,210.50 $6,817.00 

$450,000.00 $225.00 $2,700.00 $4,725.00 $7,650.00 

$500,000.00 $250.00 $3,000.00 $5,250.00 $8,500.00 

$550,000.00 $275.00 $3,300.00 $5,775.00 $9,350.00 

$600,000.00 $300.00 $3,600.00 $6,300.00 $10,200.00 

$650,000.00 $325.00 $3,900.00 $6,825.00 $11,050.00 

$700,000.00 $350.00 $4,200.00 $7,350.00 $11,900.00 

$750,000.00 $375.00 $4,500.00 $7,875.00 $12,750.00 

$800,000.00 $400.00 $4,800.00 $8,400.00 $13,600.00 

$850,000.00 $425.00 $5,100.00 $8,925.00 $14,450.00 

$900,000.00 $450.00 $5,400.00 $9,450.00 $15,300.00 

$950,000.00 $475.00 $5,700.00 $9,975.00 $16,150.00 

$1,000,000.00 $500.00 $6,000.00 $10,500.00 $17,000.00 

PROJECTS VALUED OVER $1,000,000 

Single Family Homes: 

   $5000.00 for the first 1 million, and $3.00 for each additional $1000 or any fraction thereof. 

Examples: 

$1,001,000.00 $500.50 $5,003.00 $10,510.50 $16,014.00 

$1,500,000.00 $750.00 $6,500.00 $15,750.00 $23,000.00 

$2,000,000.00 $1,000.00 $8,000.00 $21,000.00 $30,000.00 

Multifamily, Commercial, or Industrial Property: 

     The Inspection Fee for Projects in excess of $1 million will be 1% of the Project Value. 

Section 3-45 – 3-65.  Reserved. 

(Ord. 07-2010, 7/20/10; Ord. 04-2013, 2/19/13; Ord. 01-2016, 1/19/16) 

74


	July 26 PC Meeting Agenda
	June 28 Minutes Memo
	Non-Conforming Uses Memo
	301.050
	ORDINANCE 2018-05-02, Repealing and Replacing Non-Conforming Uses
	AN ORDINANCE 38TREPEALING AND REPLACING38T
	NON-CONFORMING USES IN CITY CODE

	Variances Memo
	Section 304 ZONING CODE VARIANCES AND APPEALS
	39T38T37T36T35T34T33T32T31T30T29T28T27T26T25T24T23T22T21T20T19T18T17T16T15T14T13T12T11T10T9T8T7T6T5T4T3T2T1T0T"Amended by Ordinance 2005-1; April  12, 2005."

	ORDINANCE 2018-04-01, Amending Variance Provisions in City Code
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIANCE PROVISIONS IN CITY CODE

	Comp Plan Memo
	Comp Plan Draft v.072318
	Special Events Memo
	ORDINANCE 2018-05-01 Special Events v7-6
	Escrow Memo
	Escrow Fee Schedule
	Grant Fee Schedule
	Afton Fee Schedule



